
 

THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE 

 

TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN'S MEETING 

NORTHBRIDGE TOWN HALL 

7 MAIN STREET - WHITINSVILLE, MA  01588 

July 17, 2023 at 7:00 PM  

  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 

I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: A. April 24, 2023 

 

II. PUBLIC HEARING  

  

III. APPOINTMENTS/ B. By the Board of Selectmen: 1) Election Officers: Democrat, Republican, and 

Unenrolled/Vote to appoint  

 

IV. CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT 

 

V. DECISIONS: 

C. Whitin Community Center/Request to hang a banner across Church Street from July 24, 2023 – 

August 7, 2023 to advertise their annual Cars in the Park event, scheduled for August 19, 2023 

   

D. MK Pizza Inc dba Northbridge House of Pizza [Magad Fakhry, Mgr.], 2225 Providence Road, 

Northbridge, MA 01534/Request to transfer the non-alcoholic Common Victualler’s License [Current 

Licensee: Northbridge House of Pizza, Amir Roufail, Mgr.] -pending all monies owed to the town and 

Departmental approvals/Present: Maged Fakhry, proposed Mgr.  

 

E. For Reconsideration/Prem Shri Sai, Inc. dba 1 Quickstop Convenience – Transfer of Package Store 

license [Wines & Malts] from Samarpan, Inc dba 1 Quickstop [Bhikhabhai Patel] to Prem Shri Sai, Inc. 

dba 1 Quickstop [Neena Jain, proposed Manager] 

 

F. Fall annual Town Meeting [October 24, 2023] / Vote to close warrant Friday, August 25, 2023 at 12:00 

Noon 

 

G. Riverdale Cemetery Deed – Peter and Diane Lajoie [3 graves Lot No. 11, Maple Square, South]/Vote 

to approve the sale of lot 

 

H. Pine Grove Cemetery Deeds 1) Douglas Carr [6 graves, Lot No. 31, Oaklawn Ave.] 2) Seng Sengtong 

[Cremation, Lot No. 401, Woodlawn Ave.]/Vote to approve the sale of lots 

 

 VI. DISCUSSIONS 

    

VII. TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT 

 I. RFP for 193 Main Street, Fire Station Headquarters 

 

VIII. SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS  

  

IX. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA  

 

X. CORRESPONDENCE  

 

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Town Clerk:  2 Hard copies □ 

Web: Post time-stamped copy □ 

 

 



 

1 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN'S MEETING 
 

April 24, 2023 
 
A meeting of the Board of Selectmen was called to order by Chairman Collins at 7:00 PM, Northbridge 
Town Hall, 7 Main Street, Whitinsville, MA. Board Members Present: Ampagoomian, Begin, Collins, 
Melia and Paulhus. Also Present: Town Manager Gaudette.  
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by those present. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES/None 

 
PUBLIC HEARING/None 

 
APPOINTMENTS: By the Town Manager (Vote to nominate): Scott Schofield, Animal 
Inspector/Present: Jeanne Gniadek, Board of Health Administrator. Mrs. Gniadek explained that out 
former Inspector of Animals Maurice Guilbault has given his notice to no longer serve. Mr. Schofield works 
with Mr. Guilbault in other communities and was highly recommended by him. The Board of Health did 
meet with him and felt he would be a good fit. She further explained that the nomination from the Board of 
Selectmen will go forward to the Department of Agriculture for further approval. Mr. Scofield stated that 
he lived in Whitinsville the first 14 years of his life, went to school here, went to Norfolk Agie where he 
graduated with a major in farm and livestock management. He currently works there full-time as an Animal 
Science staff taking care of all the animals. A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to nominate 
Scott Schofield as the Animal Inspector for the Town of Northbridge. Vote yes/Unanimous.  

 
CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT:  

  
Annual Town Election [May 16, 2023]/Vote to sign Election Warrant/Present: Linda Zywien, Town 
Clerk. Mrs. Zywien stated that this is an yearly routine for the Board to vote to sign the Election. This year 
there are the list of officers and no questions. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Melia to sign the 
Annual Town Election Warrant [May 16, 2023]. Vote yes/Unanimous.  
 
Spring Annual Town Meeting [May 2, 2023]/Vote position on all warrant articles - Presentations 
from Petitioners/Present:  Attorney Rob Knapik. Town Manager Gaudette explained that there are two 
petition articles [Article 24 and 25] that Mr. Knapik will be presenting prior to the Board voting the 
positions on their articles. Town Manager Gaudette noted that both the Zoning Board of Appeals and the 
Finance Committee voted to support both articles. Mr. Knapik noted that article 25 deals with property on 
Providence Road. Mr. Knapik explained that the passing of this article would extend the B2 Zoning district 
about 900 feet southernly from Union Street. This would include the Dollar General property, which is 
owned by the Giannopoulos family, who are the ones who have come forward with this petition. If 
approved, Dr. Sawyer would like to use a portion of the property for a veterinary clinic, which would need 
to be approved through a special permit in a B2 zoned district. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. 
Melia to support article 25 Petition article. Vote yes/Unanimous. Mr. Kinapik then moved to article 24 
explained that this is a rezoning of land that lies westerly of Providence Road and southernly of Wing Road. 
The petitioners are seeking to rezone this land from B-3 to R-3. When the purchaser bought the land, it was 
divided into vacant land that became Milford Federal Savings and Loan and a second parcel became Wing 
Building, which is where his offices are. The third parcel was intended to be developed for commercial 
purposes and is zoned for that, but they think because there is no frontage and its size it does not have 
potential for commercial development or business uses. They are hoping that by rezoning it, it will aid in 
the land being used. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Melia to support article 24. Vote 
yes/Unanimous. Article 1: Prior year bills- This is a standard article for this time of year and there is one 

A.



Board of Selectmen 
  April 24, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

2 

for National Grid for DPW which was due to the shuffle of ownership from the School department to the 
Town. Article 2: FY ’23 Budget Adjustments- Town Manager Gaudette stated that transfers include the 
Snow and Ice budget, additional funding for the landfill analysis, and Fire and Ambulance overtime fill ins 
for an employee out on Injured on Duty. Article 3: FY 24 Omnibus Budget Article – based on the 
Governor’s budget. Article 4: FY ’24 Sewer Enterprise Fund. Article 5: FY’24 Water Enterprise Fund. 
Article 6: Chapter 90. Article 7: Compensated Balance Agreements. Article 8: Annual Reauthorization of 
BOH & Playground and Recreation Accounts. Article 9: FY24 Grove Cemetery budget. Article 10: Use 
Comm. Preservation Fund revenues for Community Preservation Projected FY24. Article 11: $10k for 
Community Preservation Commission Expenses. Article 12: Pine Grove tree and stump removal. Article 
13: Retained Earnings (Sewer Ent) - $150k for CWMP work, $150k for 3 raw sewage pumps and $200k 
retrofitting the entire UV system. Article 14: Retained earnings from water - $60k to replace fire hydrants. 
Article 15: Capital Projects. Article 16: Unexpended funds from prior appropriations-$115,846.01 for 
public sewer conversion) Police Station) and purchase of 2 motorcycles and a trailer (Police Station). 
Article 17: School Committee - $193,775 from Town Building Maintenance Fund: $19,500 (Ride on Floor 
Scrubber); $70,300 to replace doors/frames at NMS; $24,975 to replace clocks at NMS; and $79,000 to 
refinish gym floors at NMS and NHS. Selectman Collins asked how many doors and door frames they 
would be replacing. Town Manager Gaudette read aloud the description provided by the School from the 
Annual Town Meeting Booklet. Selectman Ampagoomian asked where the account stands from the money 
that we are getting from the solar farms. Town Manager Gaudette explained that the building maintenance 
fund can only be used for certain items, and we get about $300 thousand dollars a year and we have been 
spending pretty much all of that over the last few years but this year they are only spending $190 thousand 
dollars of the proposed $300 thousand this year. Next year we would expect the same $300 thousand in 
addition to the new project that will come on for McQuades Lane and the left over surplus. Town Manager 
Gaudette explained that the pilots go for 20 years so there are probably a few of them that are in the 15 -18 
year range, so they are trying to get as many of the Building Maintenance projects done that we can. Article 
18: Dispose of the Main Street Fire Station (Map 2/Parcel 44). Article 19: Dispose of the former 
Elementary School (Map 14A/Parcel 160). The Finance Committee voted to pass over the article. They 
suggested that they would like to have the project that is selected come to the Town Meeting and bring it 
forward for the voters to make the decision. Article 20: Dispose of town-owned vacant land on Providence 
Road (Map 14/Parcel 17). Article 21: Grant an easement to Nat’l Grid for electric service and to Eversource 
for propane service at the Fire Station. Article 22: Transfer remaining balance of $1,001,117.37 From the 
Health Ins. Stabilization Fund to the General Stabilization Fund. Article 23: Finance Comm. Transfer 
$297,940 from Free Cash to the General Stabilization Fund. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. 
Melia to support articles 1 through 23 of the May 2, 2023 Spring Annual Town meeting. Vote 
yes/Unanimous.  
 
George Marston Whitin Community Association Inc. dba Whitin Community Center/1) Gala event 
on Saturday, May 6, 2023 from 5:30 PM to 10 PM - request for a one-day entertainment license; 2) 
Picnic in the Park event on Saturday, June 10 2023 from 10 AM to 2 PM 2a) request for a one-day 
entertainment license; 2b) request for a one-day wine and malt license; 3) Cars in the Park event on 
Saturday, August 19, 2023 from 10 AM to 4 PM 3a) request for a one-day entertainment license 3b) 
request for a one-day wine and malt license; 4) Greenway Challenge event on Saturday, September 
30, 2023 from 11 AM to 6 PM 4a) request for a one-day entertainment license 4b) request for a one-
day wine and malt license; 5) Haunted Trail event on Friday, October 27, 2023 from 7:30 PM to 9:30 
PM/Present: Heather Elster. Ms. Elster explained that they planned all of their events out for the year 
since they are celebrating their 100-year anniversary. She noted that the Gala event will take place from 
5:30 – 10:30 at the Community Center. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian/seconded/Mr. Melia to approve the 
requests for 1) one-day entertainment license for the Gala event on Saturday, May 6, 2023 from 5:30 PM 
to 10 PM 2) a) one-day entertainment license and b) one-day wine and malt license for the Picnic in the 
Park event on Saturday, June 10 2023 from 10 AM to 2 PM; 3) a) one-day entertainment license; b) one-
day wine and malt license Cars in the Park event on Saturday, August 19, 2023 from 10 AM to 4 PM; 4) a) 



Board of Selectmen 
  April 24, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

3 

one-day entertainment license 4b) one-day wine and malt license Greenway Challenge event on Saturday, 
September 30, 2023 from 11 AM to 6 PM; 5) Haunted Trail event on Friday, October 27, 2023 from 7:30 
PM to 9:30 PM. Vote yes/Unanimous.  

 
2023 Annual License Renewals [Junk Dealers, Bowling & Billiards]/Vote to approve subject to the 
payment of all monies due the Town. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Melia to approve the 
2023 Annual License Renewals [Junk Dealers, Bowling & Billiards] subject to the payment of all monies 
due the Town/ Vote yes/Unanimous.  
 
Village Congregational Church [Harvest Festival, Saturday, September 23, 2023 from 9 AM to 3 PM 
[Rain date: Sunday, September 24, 2023]/1) Request to hang a banner across Church Street from 
Sunday, September 10, 2023 to Sunday, September 24, 2023; 2) Request to close Church Street from 
Park Street to Main Street from 8 AM to 4 PM. 3) Request to use Memorial Park on Saturday, 
September 23, 2023 from 8 AM to 4 PM; and 4) Request for a One-Day entertainment license. A 
motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian, to approve the request to 1) hang a banner across Church 
Street from Sunday, September 10, 2023 to Sunday, September 24, 2023; 2) to close Church Street from 
Park Street to Main Street from 8 AM to 4 PM; 3) to use Memorial Park on Saturday, September 23, 2023 
from 8 AM to 4 PM; and 4) One-Day entertainment license. 

 
Open Sky Community Services/Request to hang a banner across Church Street from June 18, 2023 
to July 2, 2023 to advertise their Summer Concert Series Event to take place Thursday evenings June 
29 – August 31 from 6 PM – 8 PM. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Melia too approve the 
request to hang a banner across Church Street from June 18, 2023 to July 2, 2023 to advertise their Summer 
Concert Series Event to take place Thursday evenings June 29 – August 31 from 6 PM – 8 PM. Vote 
yes/Unanimous.  

 
Safety Committee Minutes (March 15, 2023) / Vote to accept the recommendations. Town Manager 
Gaudette reviewed the recommendations provided in the minutes. A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. 
Ampagoomian to accept the recommendations of the March 15, 2023 Safety Committee meeting minutes. 
Vote yes/Unanimous.  

 
DISCUSSIONS/None  
  
TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT: Town Manager Gaudette noted that the Spring Town Meeting is 
scheduled for Tuesday, May 2, 2023 at 7 PM at the Middle School.  
 
SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS: Selectman Melia: 1) offered condolences on behalf of the Board of 
Selectmen to the Massey family for their loss of Diane Massey who passed away over the weekend. 
Selectmen Paulhus: 1) asked if the painting of the water tank on Hill Street would have any disruption to 
traffic. DPW Director Jamie Luchini noted that there should not be any disruption as it is off site and it is 
all exterior painting. Selectman Ampagoomian 1) asked about the ornamental lights on Church Street and 
in Rockdale. Mr. Luchini stated that the lights for Church Street are scheduled to be delivered on May 5th 
and should be installed sometime thereafter. The light in Rockdale does not have an eta yet. 2) asked about 
the paving that Whitinsville Water Company will be doing. Mr. Luchini stated that they did a walk through 
and met with the contractor, and it should be completed over the Summer. 3) asked about the intersection 
of Sutton Street, 122, School Street and Upton Street, noting that the State wanted to put in a roundabout. 
Mr. Luchini clarified that the state does not want a roundabout but requested that the parameters that were 
submitted for the Tips project include the option for a roundabout. Our consulting sent in what they felt 
were the best options, which did included a roundabout, nothing has been approved yet. 4) reminded 
everyone that today, April 24th is Martyrs Day.  
  



Board of Selectmen 
  April 24, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

4 

ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/None 
CORRESPONDENCE/None 
EXECUTIVE SESSION/None 
 
A motion/Mr. Begin, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to adjourn the public meeting. Vote yes/Unanimous.  
 
Meeting Adjourned: 7:42 PM 
 
         Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
         Brian Paulhus, Clerk  
 
 
/mjc 
  



Board of Selectmen 
  April 24, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

5 

LIST OF DOCUMENTATION 
 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING - OPEN SESSION 
 

April 24, 2023 
 
I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES/None 
 
II. PUBLIC HEARING/None 
 
III. APPOINTMENTS: A. By the Town Manager (Vote to nominate): Scott Schofield, Animal  

Inspector/Present: Jeanne Gniadek, Board of Health Administrator  
 -Copy of memorandum regarding the appointment of Scott Schofield as Animal Inspector 
 -Copy of nomination of inspector of Animals form 
 
IV. CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT 
  
V. DECISIONS 

B. Annual Town Election [May 16, 2023]/Vote to sign Election Warrant/Present: Linda 
Zywien, Town Clerk/No documentation 

  
C. Spring Annual Town Meeting [May 2, 2023]/Vote position on all warrant articles - 
Presentations from Petitioners/Present:  Attorney Rob Knapik 

 -Copy of Spring Town Meeting Positions form  
 -Copy of Spring Town Meeting Warrant  
 -Copy of memo from the Planning Board recommendation for article 24 
 -Copy of proposed zoning changes for article 24 
 -Copy of memo from the Planning Board recommendation for article 23  
 -Copy of proposed zoning changes for article 23  
 

D. George Marston Whitin Community Association Inc. dba Whitin Community Center/1) 
Gala event on Saturday, May 6, 2023 from 5:30 PM to 10 PM - request for a one-day 
entertainment license; 2) Picnic in the Park event on Saturday, June 10 2023 from 10 AM to 
2 PM 2a) request for a one-day entertainment license; 2b) request for a one-day wine and 
malt license; 3) Cars in the Park event on Saturday, August 19, 2023 from 10 AM to 4 PM 
3a) request for a one-day entertainment license 3b) request for a one-day wine and malt 
license; 4) Greenway Challenge event on Saturday, September 30, 2023 from 11 AM to 6 
PM 4a) request for a one-day entertainment license 4b) request for a one-day wine and malt 
license; 5) Haunted Trail event on Friday, October 27, 2023 from 7:30 PM to 9:30 
PM/Present: Heather Elster or Jennifer Castro 
-Copy of Application for a one-day entertainment license for the Gala Event 
-Copy of Revenue Enforcement and Protection Attestation 
-Copy of Workers’ Compensation Insurance Affidavit  
-Copy of License Routing Slip 
-Copy of application for a one-day entertainment  
-Copy of Revenue Enforcement and Protection Attestation 
-Copy of Workers’ Compensation Insurance Affidavit  
-Copy of application for one-day entertainment license for Picnic in the Park 
-Copy of Revenue Enforcement and Protection Attestation 
-Copy of Workers’ Compensation Insurance Affidavit  
-Copy of Hold Harmless Agreement  



Board of Selectmen 
  April 24, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

6 

-Copy of License Routing Slip 
-Copy of application for a one-day entertainment license for the Cars in the Park Event 
-Copy of Revenue Enforcement and Protection Attestation 
-Copy of Workers’ Compensation Insurance Affidavit  
-Copy of application for a one-day wine and malt license for the Cars in the Park event 
-Copy of Revenue Enforcement and Protection Attestation 
-Copy of Workers’ Compensation Insurance Affidavit  
-Copy of Hold Harmless Agreement  
-Copy of License Routing Slip 
-Copy of one-day entertainment license for the Greenway Challenge  
-Copy of Revenue Enforcement and Protection Attestation 
-Copy of Workers’ Compensation Insurance Affidavit  
-Copy of application for a one-day wine and malt license for the Greenway Challenge 
-Copy of Revenue Enforcement and Protection Attestation 
-Copy of Workers’ Compensation Insurance Affidavit  
-Copy of Hold Harmless Agreement  
-Copy of License Routing Slip 
-Copy of application for a one-day entertainment license for the Haunted Trail event  
-Copy of Revenue Enforcement and Protection Attestation 
-Copy of Workers’ Compensation Insurance Affidavit  
-Copy of License Routing Slip 

 
E. 2023 Annual License Renewals [Junk Dealers, Bowling & Billiards]/Vote to approve 
subject to the payment of all monies due the Town 

 -Copy of 2023 Annual license renewals listing  
 

F. Village Congregational Church [Harvest Festival, Saturday, September 23, 2023 from 9 
AM to 3 PM [Rain date: Sunday, September 24, 2023]/1) Request to hang a banner across 
Church Street from Sunday, September 10, 2023 to Sunday, September 24, 2023; 2) 
Request to close Church Street from Park Street to Main Street from 8 AM to 4 PM. 3) 
Request to use Memorial Park on Saturday, September 23, 2023 from 8 AM to 4 PM; and 
4) Request for a One-Day entertainment license.  

 -Copy of email requesting a banner and to close Church Street 
 -Copy of email from the DPW Director approving the closure 
 -Copy of Memorial Park Request Form 
 -Copy of application for a one-day entertainment for Harvest Festival 
 -Copy of Revenue Enforcement and Protection Attestation  
 -Copy of Certificate of Liability Insurance  
 -Copy of Workers’ Compensation Affidavit 
 -Copy of Hold Harmless Agreement 
 -Copy of Certificate of Exemption  
 

G. Open Sky Community Services/Request to hang a banner across Church Street from 
June 18, 2023 to July 2, 2023 to advertise their Summer Concert Series Event to take place 
Thursday evenings June 29 – August 31 from 6 PM – 8 PM 

 -Copy email requesting to hang a banner across Church Street  
 

H. Safety Committee Minutes (March 15, 2023) / Vote to accept the recommendations 
 -Copy of March 15, 2023 Safety Committee meeting minutes  
 



Board of Selectmen 
  April 24, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

7 

VI. DISCUSSIONS/None 
VII. TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT/None 
VIII. SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS/No documentation  
IX. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/None 
X. CORRESPONDENCE/None 
XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION/None 
 



ELECTION WORKERS 2023

Party Last Name First Name Address
Democrat Calnan Barbara Jean 27 C St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Campo Pamela 95 Lovelace Ln Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Clasby Debbie Swift Rd Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Conlee Pauline 1068 Hill St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Cota Carolyn 17 Douglas Rd #309 Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Daly Daniel J. 127 Lovelace Ln. Northbridge, MA  01534
Democrat D'Amato Linda 63 Gill Ct. Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat DeForest Mary 28 Heritage Drive Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat DeForest Wayne 28 Heritage Drive Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Dumont Ronald 173 North Main St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Forman Harriet 381 Pollard Rd Northbridge, MA  01534
Democrat Gallagher James 153 Heritage Dr Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Gogolinski Lisa 442 Douglas Rd Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Heney Shirley 32 Elston Ave Northbridge, MA  01534
Democrat Hughes Tersilia 900 Providence Rd Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Joubert Kathleen 37 High St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Kalousdian Jeffrey 437 Church St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Krupsky John Jr. 22 Clover Hill Rd Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Kuras Evelyn 1282 Quaker St Northbridge, MA  01534
Democrat Laflash Clement 145 S. Main St Northbridge, MA  01534
Democrat Lanagan Michael P.O. Box 205 Linwood, MA  01525
Democrat LeCour Pauline 698 Highland St Northbridge, MA  01534
Democrat Lowe Cristi 166 Border Street Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Lyman Agnes 20 Water St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat McCaughey Joan 71 Heritage Dr Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Murray Paul 18 Heritage Dr Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Nocera Sharon 670 Linwood Ave #228 Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Nowlan Elaine 63 School St #403 Northbridge, MA  01534
Democrat Peloquin Joseph Sr. 38 Gelinas Ave Northbridge, MA  01534
Democrat Planas‐Merced Damian 205 Highland St Northbridge, MA  01534
Democrat Potty David 72 Stoney Brook Dr Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Potty Mary 72 Stoney Brook Dr Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Rajunas Lydia 19 Kennedy Circle Northbridge, MA  01534

B



ELECTION WORKERS 2023

Democrat Raymond‐Jordan Laurine L 572 Church St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Scheible Ellen 62 Samuel Dr Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Sheehan Joan 117 Heritage Dr Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Simonian Christina 7B Colonial Dr. Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Spencer Pamela 164 Heritage Dr Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Stacy Anne 3 Linkside Ct Northbridge, MA  01534
Democrat Stacy Leslie 3 Linkside Ct Northbridge, MA  01534
Democrat Swanson Michael 201 Swift Rd Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Talbot Deborah 102 Heritage Dr Whitinsville, MA  01588
Democrat Tessier‐Woupio Diane 65 Violette Cir Northbridge, MA  01534
Democrat Timmons Wendy 870 Quaker St Northbridge, MA  01534
Republican Ayotte‐Kind Yvette 42 Heritage Dr Whitinsville, MA  01588
Republican Berghuis Jennie 36 Edmonds Cir Whitinsville, MA  01588
Republican Boucher Irene 934 Providence Rd Whitinsville, MA  01588
Republican Brouwer Susan M 14 Lea Ave Northbridge, MA  01534
Republican Canoy Jonathan 114 Conservation Dr Whitinsville, MA  01588
Republican Canoy Joseph 114 Conservation Dr Whitinsville, MA  01588
Republican Canoy Maria 114 Conservation Dr Whitinsville, MA  01588
Republican Ebbelling Ahleen 31 Henry St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Republican Favata Philip 27 Forest St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Republican French Steven 110 Eben Chamberlain Rd Whitinsville, MA  01588
Republican Frieswick Bruce 32 Highland St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Republican Gobar Paula 38 Rachel Ln Whitinsville, MA  01588
Republican Gobar Scott 38 Rachel Ln Whitinsville, MA  01588
Republican Gonsalves Pamela 1875 Hill St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Republican Hendon Allen 50 Dover Dr Whitinsville, MA  01588
Republican Jorritsma Florence 1076 Hill St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Republican Koopman Priscilla 1 Wolfe Hill Rd Northbridge, MA  01534
Republican Letscher John 146 Jon Cir Whitinsville, MA  01588
Republican Lewis Susan 10 Edmonds Cir Whitinsville, MA  01588
Republican Partridge Mary 275 Purgatory Rd Whitinsville, MA  01588
Republican Randolph Lynne 17 Keryn Ct. Northbridge, MA  01534
Republican Snow Carol 28 June St. Northbridge, MA  01534
Republican Stefancyk Denise 379 Linwood Ave Whitinsville, MA  01588



ELECTION WORKERS 2023

Republican VanderBaan Kathryn  71 Swift Road Whitinsville, MA  01588
Republican VandeWerken Joel 255 Goldthwaite Rd Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Archibald Jane 110 East St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Ashe Bonnie 74 Carpenter Rd Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Bedigian Jayne 100 Rocky Road Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Belanger Jonathan 556 Carpenter Rd. Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Belanger Karen 556 Carpenter Rd. Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Beqiri Jessica 1005 Marston Rd Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Bergeron Kathleen 100 Providence Rd Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Berry Tracy 2171 Providence Rd #3 Northbridge, MA  01534
Unenrolled Bonneau Edward 56 Prescott Rd Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Booker Bryan 9 Violette Circle Northbridge, MA  01534
Unenrolled Briand Maureen 158 Linwood Ave   Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Brouillard John 139 Cooper Rd Northbridge, MA  01534
Unenrolled Buehler Gregg 243 Cooper Rd Northbridge, MA  01534
Unenrolled Burton Martha 31 East St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Canoy Shannon 114 Conservation Dr Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Cassano‐Beckman Donnamarie 39 Jefferson Ave Northbridge, MA  01534
Unenrolled Conio Tobias 60 Fairlawn St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Costanza Eric 68 Brian Cir Northbridge, MA  01534
Unenrolled Cotterell Edward 373 Mendon Rd Northbridge, MA  01534
Unenrolled Cronin Daniel 95 Mendon Rd Northbridge, MA  01534
Unenrolled Crooker Linda  2 Chestnut St #212 Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Damico Erika 444 Main St. Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled DeJordy Mary 1759 Providence Rd Northbridge, MA  01534
Unenrolled Dickert Harold "Hal" 42 Edmonds Cir Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Dickert Joan 42 Edmonds Cir Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Ducharme Doris 64 Heritage Dr Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Duncan Harold 19 Kennedy Circle Northbridge, MA  01534
Unenrolled Durso Stephen 549 Hill St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Farley Anne 401 Cooper Rd Northbridge, MA  01534
Unenrolled Forgit Denise 220 Heritage Dr Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Foster Amanda 693 Fowler Rd Northbridge, MA  01534
Unenrolled Frieswyk Cynthia 358 Fletcher St Whitinsville, MA  01588



ELECTION WORKERS 2023

Unenrolled Gagnon Elizabeth 21 Stoney Brook Dr Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Gallant Joanne 169 Sheryl Dr Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Green Susan 118 Clubhouse Ln Northbridge, MA  01534
Unenrolled Greene Sheryl 68 Jon Cir Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Hagar Robin 57 Tipperary Drive Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Harris Julie 23 Forest Street Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Hutchinson John 40 Windstone Dr Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Johnson Christine M. 568 Samuel Dr Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Jubinville Victor 76 Prospect St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Kurowski Sharon 82 Plummer Ave Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Lafleur Paula J. 138 North Main St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Lafleur Richard 138 North Main St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Lamoreaux Kathryn 30 Kingsnorth St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Lemoine Barbara 733 Highland St Northbridge, MA  01534
Unenrolled Levesque Ryan T. 139 Border St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Lussier Cindy 35 Emond St Northbridge, MA  01534
Unenrolled Machado Lee 1395 Providence Rd Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Malkasian Claire 57 Prospect St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled March Sandra 28 Acorn Rd Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Marso Mary Lee 39 Lovelace Ln Northbridge, MA  01534
Unenrolled McCarthy Kathleen 34 Carpenter Rd Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Miedema Kathleen 84 Kerry Ln Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Miedema III David 84 Kerry Ln Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Miller Elaine 91 Deane Way Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Minichiello Paula 50 Plummer Park Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Mistretta Jeanne 670 Linwood Ave #117 Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Morris Virginia 37 Leland Rd Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Murray George 43 Spruce St Northbridge, MA  01534
Unenrolled Murray Janyce 18 Heritage Dr Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Murray Stacie 43 Tipperary Drive Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Nestor Cheryl 80 Hillview Ln Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Nye Steven 233 North Main St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Parkinson Margaret 53 Henry Street Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Pierel‐Doucette Marie 68 North Main St Whitinsville, MA  01588



ELECTION WORKERS 2023

Unenrolled Pierre‐Louis Dickens 205 Main St, #B Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Potenza Patricia 12 Linkside Ct Northbridge, MA  01534
Unenrolled Potvin Charlene 670 Linwood Ave #114 Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Pratt Donna 40 Church Ave. Northbridge, MA  01534
Unenrolled Quigley Lucia 11 Sheryl Dr Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Ramian John 706 Sutton St Northbridge, MA  01534
Unenrolled Rizzo Peter 58 Kerry Ln Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Roy Kathleen 41 Hillview Ln Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Sasseville Richard 217 Jefferson Ave Northbridge, MA  01534
Unenrolled Sullivan Ronald 96 Quarry Rd Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Susienka Sharon 1467 Hill St Northbridge, MA  01534
Unenrolled Trombino Marguerite 36B Cottage St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Unser Susan 74 Dover Dr Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Valdivia Kathleen 19 Forest St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Verducci David 135 Rebecca Rd Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Walker Bethany 37 Granite St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled White Ronald 88 North Main St. Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Wildfeuer Justine 50 Lincoln Cir Northbridge, MA  01534
Unenrolled Woupio Allen 65 Violette Cir Northbridge, MA  01534
Unenrolled Young Kenneth 77 Hillview Ln Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Young Sandra 77 Hillview Ln Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Zohoun Raja 56 D St Whitinsville, MA  01588
Unenrolled Zywien John 52 Gill Court Whitinsville, MA  01588
United Independent Party McKinney Alan 67 Fowler Ave Northbridge, MA  01534
United Independent Party Schuster Melissa 42 Riverdale St Northbridge, MA  01534
American Independent Party Leeman Laurie 1277 Quaker St. Northbridge, MA  01534
Mass. Independent Party Guido Maureen 670 Linwood Ave #216 Whitinsville, MA  01588
Mass. Independent Party Streeter Judith 4 Lake Terr Whitinsville, MA  01588



1

Melissa Ciaramitaro

From: Melissa Ciaramitaro
Sent: Monday, June 26, 2023 1:31 PM
To: Michelle Benoit
Subject: RE: Church St. Banner request

Good afternoon Michelle,  
 
Unfortunately the banner is booked from August 7th – August 21st. We could schedule for July 24th – August 7th if that 
works for you? Let me know and I can schedule it to go before the Selectmen’s meeting on July 17th.  
 
Just a few updates on the banner. The Highway Department is now responsible for hanging the banner so you can bring 
the banner to their office located at 11 Fletcher Street. They now hang the banners from Monday – Monday for two 
weeks.  
 
Thank you 
 
Melissa Ciaramitaro, Sr. Adm. Asst./HR. Asst. 
Town Manager’s Office 
Town of Northbridge 
7 Main Street Whitinsville, MA 01588 
Phone: 508-234-2095  Ext. 1202 
 

From: Michelle Benoit <Michelle.Benoit@OurGym.org>  
Sent: Monday, June 26, 2023 12:45 PM 
To: Melissa Ciaramitaro <mciaramitaro@northbridgemass.org> 
Subject: Church St. Banner request 
 
Hi Melissa, 
I hope this finds you well.  I am wondering if we can reserve the banner spot on Church Street for the Cars in 
the Park event?  The event is August 19th, so ideally we would like to have the banner up the two weeks 
prior.   
 
Also, now that the town has the new sign in front of the town hall, I am also wondering the wording can be 
changed to the following (since there is more room on the sign now). 
 

Whitin Community Center Cars in the Park  

Sat. August 19th 10‐3pm 

Register your vehicle at  

www.WhitinCommunityCenter.com 

All Welcome, Spectators free 
 

C.



D.

















NTM License Slips
Row 1

Current Status On Agenda for 7.17.23

Done

License ID: NTM#16161

License Type: Common Victualler's License

Description: Pizza Resturaunt, subs, salads, pasta and soda

Business: MK Pizza Inc. dba Northbridge House of Pizza

Applicant: Magad Fakhry, Manager

Address: 2225 Providence Road

Approval Target 07/13/23

Slip Started on: 06/29/23 3:39 PM

PLANNING
Approve:

PLANNING
Comments: N/A -not applicable

POLICE
Approve:

POLICE
Comments:

FIRE Appove:

FIRE
Comments: Subject to a fire safety inspection

BUILDING
ZONING
Approve:

BUILDING
ZONING
Comments:

CONSERVATION
Approve:



CONSERVATION
Comments: N/A

HEALTH
Approve:

HEALTH
Comments:

Subject to a Health Inspection (scheduled for July 7th) and any
required upgrades.

Based on the 7/7/23 inspection, the facility will need to install a
hand-wash sink in the food prep area as currently there is only one
sink at the very rear of the facility next to the 3-bay sink - impractical
for daily use by food prep employees. They will also need to
conduct a deep cleaning, repair several floor tiles, remove unused
equipment, and have all personal belongings from the current owner
removed from the establishment. A pre-opening inspection upon
completion of the above will be required.

ASSESSORS
Approve:

ASSESSORS
Comments:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Approve:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Comments:

SMOC owes back water charges for this property



E.



mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxx



mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text





mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text





mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxx



















































G.



H.1.



H.2.



 1 

 

Town of Northbridge 

   
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
 

                                                  193 Main Street 
Whitinsville, MA 01588 

 

 
 

Project Title:  Sale & Development of 193 Main Street Fire Station 
                                        

Issued:  July 26, 2023 

 
Proposals due Friday, August 25, 2023, by 12:00 PM 

 

 
 
Town:    Town of Northbridge, Town Hall  
Address:   7 Main Street, Whitinsville, MA 01588  
Contact:          Adam Gaudette, Town Manager 
Telephone:  (508) 234-2095  

Email:    agaudette@northbridgemass.org 

I.



 2 

 

 Town of Northbridge 
Request for Proposals 

  
 
 

                         

Town of Northbridge Legal Notice 

Request for Proposals 

 
The Town of Northbridge (“Town”) is requesting proposals from qualified developers to purchase and 

redevelop the former Fire Station Headquarters located at 193 Main Street, Whitinsville, MA.  RFP 

documents are available by email request to agaudette@northbridgemass.org. 

 

The sale of this property will require that the selected proposer enter into a Development Agreement 

negotiated with terms satisfactory to the Town and sufficient to ensure the prompt completion of the 

project in accordance with the terms of the accepted proposal. 

 

There will be a required pre-bid informational session on Wednesday, August 9, 2023, at 11:00 a.m. at 

the Northbridge Fire Station, 193 Main Street, Whitinsville, MA 01588. 

 

Sealed responses clearly labeled "Redevelopment Proposal for the Northbridge Fire Station" are due 

by 12:00 p.m. on Friday, August 25, 2023, delivered to:  Town Manager/Chief Procurement Officer, 

Northbridge Town Hall, 7 Main Street, Whitinsville, MA 01588. 

 

The Town reserves the right to reject any and all proposals; to waive any defects, informalities, and minor 

irregularities; to award contracts; or cancel this RFP, if it is in the Town's best interest to do so. 

 

 

 

Adam D. Gaudette 

Town Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

Advertised in Central Register/Milford Daily –  Wednesday, July 26, 2023 

Pre-Bid Informational Session –      Wednesday, August 9, 2023 

Responses / Proposals due –       Friday, August 25, 2023 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:agaudette@northbridgemass.org


 3 

 

 

 

Development Opportunity 

The Town of Northbridge (“Town”), acting by and through 

its Select Board and Town Manager, is providing an 

opportunity for a qualified private developer (“Developer”) 

to purchase the Project Site (described below) for a business 

or mixed-use development. The Town seeks proposals that 

demonstrate a creative business approach for the Project 

Site, outlining an achievable development plan. Additional 

photos of the Project Site are included in Attachment A. 

 

 

 

The Town sees the redevelopment of the Project Site as a critical component of the historic mill village 

of Whitinsville.  The Town recognizes that a development of this type may take some time to accomplish 

but cannot allow the project to languish, with no substantive progress being made or with material changes 

being made to the accepted proposal.  Accordingly, the Project Site will be sold subject to a Development 

Agreement (described below) negotiated with the Developer with terms satisfactory to the Town and 

sufficient to assure the Town of the prompt completion of the project in accordance with the terms of the 

accepted proposal. 

 

This transaction will be a disposition of an interest in real property owned by the Town and is subject to 

the provisions of M.G.L. c. 30B, §16.  This request for proposals (“RFP”) is being issued pursuant to that 

statute.  While the purchase price is an important part of any respondent’s proposal, the Town will also 

evaluate other factors including the experience of proposed Developer; its demonstrated success in design, 

construction and operation of business and residential (if applicable) development that would result in a 

viable development; experience with restoration of older structures; and the proposed timing for the 

project.   

 

1. Project Site 

 

The Town of Northbridge owns the approximately 0.71-acre Project Site located at 193 Main Street. The 

Project Site is close to the Route 146 corridor, which connects Providence and Worcester, with easy access 

to the Massachusetts Turnpike (I-90) which travels east to Boston and West to Albany.  It is also in close 

proximity to Downtown Whitinsville, a thriving commercial district with churches, retail, professional 

offices, Memorial Park, Town Hall, and a community center. The Town intends to sell this property for 

redevelopment as a business or mixed-use project within the current zoning for this site.  The Fire Station 

building was constructed in 1922 and consists of approximately 33,556 gross square foot of floor area, 

three-story, multi-wythe brick construction resting on reinforced, concrete foundations.  

 

The first floor consists of approximately 7,704 square foot apparatus bay with stairwell and hose tower, 

small office, and kitchen/dining area.  The second floor includes three bunk rooms and associated living 

area, while the third floor includes offices and a training area/conference room.  The fourth floor is only 

used for storage and the building also contains a basement level that is accessible, due to sloping grades, 

from the rear of the building. Vertical circulation is provided by two cast concrete staircases and a sizeable 

freight elevator that was originally used for vehicles.   

 

The Town began constructing a new Fire Station Headquarters in June of 2022 and the expected 

completion is late 2023/early 2024.  When completed, the fire department will relocate its operations and 

the 193 Main Street facility will become vacant. 

                (Apparatus Bay Entrances)  



 4 

 

 

 

 

2. Development Considerations 

 

Zoning. The Project Site’s underlying zoning is Industrial-1 (I-1), which allows many commercial and 

industrial uses, such as office, laboratory, R&D, light industrial use by right, as well as stores, and food 

& drink establishments, and personal services, by Special Permit.   

 

The building itself is pre-existing non-conforming as it does not meet the 20-feet required front setback.  

In addition, the lot is also non-conforming as it contains less than the required 40,000 square feet of area.  

It is because of this that alteration may require an additional special permit, other than a use special permit. 

 

Development proposals submitted to the Town under this RFP shall be consistent with the vision and 

purpose of the Zoning District described above.  Proposed development must comply with all relevant 

Town Bylaws, including but not limited to the following permits and/or approval requirements:  

 

1. Other Required Municipal Approvals.  The Project Site is not located within the Floodway and 

Floodplain Overlay District and is also not in a Historic District or within any permit-required 

conservation resource areas (wetlands). Depending on the final design proposed for the Project 

Site, some or all of the following approvals by various agencies of the Town may be required for 

the development and use of the property: 

 

• Select Board: Liquor license, common victualler’s  license, and other licenses if needed.  

 

                (Aerial View – 193 Main Street Fire Station)  



 5 

 

• Planning Board: Site Plan Review may be a requirement; Special Permit approval may be 

required and other approvals within the planning board’s approval process.  

 

• DPW:  Any new road opening permits, stormwater, water, sewer and similar permitting 

requirements. 

 

• Board of Health: Hazardous materials, food sales and/or service and other applicable permits 

and requirements. 

 

2. Utilities: The Project Site presently is supplied by town water, town sewer as well as natural gas 

and electric services.  The Project Site has telephone service through Verizon and internet/cable 

service through Spectrum.  

 

3. Timing. The Fire Station will become vacant in late 2023/early 2024 once the Fire Department 

relocates its operations into the new headquarters located at 1681 Providence Road. The Town 

seeks to have redevelopment activities begin as soon as possible.  The proposed timing of a project 

will be a factor in the Town’s evaluation.   

 

4. No Façade Restriction.   The Town will NOT be placing a façade restriction on the Project Site.  

There will be no restriction to require that the exterior façade remain substantially as is presently. 

The Town will not restrict improvements such as the replacement of doors or windows with 

appropriate modern equivalents or other minor improvements to the main façade.  

 

3. Prospective Developer’s Due Diligence and M.G.L. c. 21E Site Disclosure 

 

Each prospective Developer is responsible for undertaking an independent review and analysis concerning 

physical conditions, environmental conditions, applicable zoning, required permits and approvals and 

other development and legal considerations pertaining to the Project Site and the proposed business or 

mixed-use development.  
 

The Town makes no representations or warranties, expressed or implied, as to the accuracy and/or 

completeness of the information provided in this RFP. Prospective Developers will be expected to 

undertake their own review and analyses concerning physical conditions, environmental conditions, 

applicable zoning, required permits and approvals, reuse potentials, and other development, ownership 

and legal considerations (including, but not limited to, any applicable public construction and/or fair wage 

laws). 

 

The Town has a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment prepared in April 2023 by Civil & Environmental 

Consultants, Inc. (CEC) and is available on the Town’s website at www.northbridgemass.org.  

 

All respondents are strongly encouraged to visit the Project Site before submitting a proposal.  Anyone 

looking to submit a proposal should attend the Pre-Bid Informational Session on Wednesday, August 

9, 2023 at 11 am at the Project Site.  The Project Site will be delivered “as is”, without any warranty or 

representations by the Town with regard to existing conditions. 

 

4. Development Agreement: 

 

As noted above, the Town sees the redevelopment of the Project Site as a critical piece of Downtown 

Whitinsville.  The Town recognizes that a development of this type may take some time to accomplish 

but cannot allow the project to languish, with no substantive progress being made or with material changes 

being made to the accepted proposal.   



 6 

 

 

Accordingly, the Town will dispose of the Project Site through one or more agreements (here collectively 

referred to as the “Development Agreement”) negotiated with the Developer which, in the sole discretion 

of the Town, will be adequate to assure the Town that the project will be completed in a timely manner 

and in accordance with the terms proposed by the Developer and accepted by the Town.   

 

A transaction structured as a lease-to-purchase arrangement,  a conveyance at closing with a deed back to 

the Town held in escrow pending satisfactory completion of the project, or a land disposition agreement 

with appropriate terms would be acceptable to the Town.  The Town is willing to consider such terms as 

may be proposed by a prospective Developer in this regard.  The Town is also willing to consider an 

installment purchase price provision.    

 

5. Schedule 

 
RFP issued   July 26, 2023 
RFP Responses (Proposals) due   August 25, 2023 at 12:00 p.m. 
Tentative Award*   On or about October 16, 2023 
Execution of purchase contract *     On or about December 31, 2023 

* The Town does not guarantee these dates but will make every effort to achieve them to allow construction 

or alterations to commence during the 2024 construction season. 

 

 

All Proposals shall be deemed to be public record, within the meaning of M.G.L. Chapter 4, Section 7(26) 

after the Proposal Due Date. 

 

6. Submission Requirements 

 

All proposals must be submitted in accordance with the terms and conditions of this RFP to the Town 

Manager’s Office, Attn: Adam Gaudette, Town Manager, Northbridge Town Hall, 7 Main Street, 

Whitinsville, MA 01588, no later than 12:00 p.m. on Friday, August 25, 2023. 

 

Prospective Developers shall submit an original and 6 copies of their Proposals in a sealed envelope 

together with a USB flash drive of the Proposal in .pdf format.  Neither faxed nor emailed Proposals will 

be accepted.  Envelopes shall be marked: 

 
"Redevelopment Proposal for the Northbridge Fire Station" 

 
Proposals may include any materials and information that the Developer determines are necessary to 
satisfy the requirements of this RFP.  A prospective Developer may not correct, modify or substitute a 
submitted Proposal in any manner unless authorized by the Town in its sole discretion. 
 
A complete proposal shall include the following: 
 

A. Statement of Interest:  Provide a statement of proposer’s interest in development of the project; 

highlights of the proposer’s qualifications; a description of how the proposed concept addresses the 

objectives listed in this RFP; and a brief description of project team.  

B. Applicant Qualifications: Provide an organizational chart describing the entities and key personnel on 

the proposer’s team, resumes for lead personnel, and a brief description of similar projects completed 

by the team or individual in the past ten (10) years.  

C. Development Project Experience: Provide one (1) example that demonstrates successful business or 

mixed-use projects in a downtown environment as well as a list of all commercial or industrial 



 7 

 

development projects undertaken within the last ten (10) years.  If the Developer intends to propose a 

mixed-use development or single use, provide examples of projects that incorporate multiple uses into 

the development. Please include the following information for each past project example: a) location 

and photographs; b) number of units, the mix of units, the unit sizes, number of square feet and any 

customer survey/satisfaction information; c) total development cost identifying the amount of debt 

and the amount of equity used to finance project and economic return(s) achieved;  

D. A Conceptual Description of the proposed development that includes: 

▪ Development program, including floor area for the specific types of uses that will be sought. 

▪ Estimated ground coverage, height, and gross floor area of the buildings if alterations are being 

considered. Estimated square footage of existing building(s) to be razed and explanation of need, 

if applicable. 

▪ The number of commercial or industrial units proposed by size, tenure (whether rented or owned), 

level of affordability, and accessibility provisions, if any, beyond code compliance. 

▪ Description of how the proposed uses will relate programmatically to the surrounding land uses 

and the Town, identifying the basis for anticipating the degree to which the nonresidential uses 

will attract people to and thus enliven the vicinity. 

▪ Description of the physical design of the development in words, graphics, or both, including 

indication of site-specific conceptual layout, how parking is to be accommodated as divided among 

at-grade options and indication of points of access into the site for pedestrians, autos, and servicing 

trucks. 

▪  Project Schedule that sets out the anticipated time of commencement of construction, how work 

would be phased, length of likely construction, and identification of contingencies that might alter 

the timing. 

E. Financial Information that includes: 

▪ Anticipated financial and management interests in the development; 

▪ Strategy for securing equity and financing; 

▪ Banking references; 

▪ Pro Forma. 

F. Price Proposal on Form set forth as Attachment C that includes the amount to be paid by the developer 

for purchase of the Project Site.  

G. RFP security in the amount of $5,000.00.  Such security shall be payable to the Town in the form of 

cash, certified check, treasurer's or cashier's check issued by a responsible bank or trust company, or 

a bid bond issued by a surety licensed to do business in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts; and 

shall be conditioned upon the faithful performance by the principal of its obligation to pursue and 

negotiate in good faith the project as anticipated in its proposal. 

 All security of all proposers shall be retained until the execution and delivery of a Development 
Agreement with the Developer selected by the Town. At that time the security provided by all other 
proposers will be returned. 

 The RFP security covers the Town for damages if a proposer were to withdraw its proposal after the 

submission date.  Be advised that to the extent permitted by law the Town will retain all RFP 

security for withdrawn proposals. 

H. A disclosure of whether or not the proposed Developer and/or any of its principals, partners, co-

ventures and/or subcontractors participating in the proposal or the project has been dismissed or 

disqualified from a bid or contract within the past five years, and if so, the reason(s) why. 

I. A disclosure of any conditions (bankruptcy or other financial problems, pending litigation, planned 

office closures, impending merger) that may affect the developer’s ability to perform contractually. If 

a joint venture, a disclosure is required for each partner in the joint venture. 



 8 

 

 
Following the deadline for receipt, the Town Manager or his designee will open the Proposals and prepare 
a register of those developers or individuals submitting Proposals, which shall be made available for public 
inspection.   
 
All proposals shall remain firm for one hundred twenty (120) calendar days from the proposal due date.  
 

7. Proposal - Minimum Requirements 

 
In order to be considered for evaluation, the proposal must have met the RFP minimum requirements by 
providing the following with its proposal: 
 

• The Proposal must be a Complete Proposal as defined in Section 7 above. 

• At least one member of the Development Team or individual must have completed one 

comparable business or mixed-use development within the past ten (10) years. 

• The key members of the development team or individual must each submit three (3) satisfactory 

references. 

• RFP security in the amount of $5,000.00 

• The Developer must provide evidence of financial capacity to undertake the proposed 

development. 

• Certificate of Non-Collusion.  See Attachment D. 

• Attestation - Certificate of Compliance with State Tax Laws, M.G.L. c. 62C, §49A. See 

Attachment E. 

• Attestation – Disclosure Statement for Transaction with a Public Agency concerning Real Property 

M.G.L. c. 7C,s.38 (formerly M.G.L. c.7,s.40J) See Attachment G. 

 

8. Proposal – Evaluation Criteria 

 

All proposals meeting the Minimum Criteria will then be evaluated based on the following Comparative 

Evaluation Criteria: 

 
a. Consistency with Project Vision Described in RFP Introduction (“Development 

Opportunity”) 

 

▪ Highly Advantageous: Conceptual plan and description incorporates the Project Vision 

section. (8-10 points) 

 

▪ Advantageous: Conceptual plan and description incorporates some of the Project Vision 

section. (5-7 points) 

 

▪ Unacceptable: The project fails to include the desired attributes listed in the Project Vision 

section. (0-2 points) 

 
 

b. Qualifications of Project Team 

 



 9 

 

▪ Highly Advantageous: Project Team or individual has successfully completed business 

and/or mixed-use projects of similar scope, including redevelopment of municipal properties, 

and has demonstrated a high likelihood to complete the Project successfully and in an 

expedited manner. (8-10 points) 

 

▪ Advantageous: Project Team or individual has some development experience and has a 

reasonable likelihood of completing the Project acceptably and on time. (5-7 points) 

 

▪ Unacceptable: Project Team or individual does not have documented experience with single 

or mixed-use redevelopment projects. (0-2 points) 

 

c. Project Feasibility, Including Ability to Obtain Financing 

 

▪ Highly Advantageous: Proposal includes details on committed tenants and financing. High 

likelihood that developer has the ability and the resources to complete its project in the 

manner proposed.  (8-10 points) 

 

▪ Advantageous: Reasonable likelihood that developer has the ability and the resources to 

complete its project in the manner proposed. (5-7 points) 

 

▪ Unacceptable: Developer does not have the ability and the resources to complete its project 

in the manner proposed. (0 points) 

 

d. Project Timing 

 

▪ Highly Advantageous: Proposal includes a detailed timeline projecting the developer’s 

ability to complete required permitting and begin construction as soon as possible after 

award. (8-10 points) 

 

▪ Advantageous: Proposal includes a timeline demonstrating the developer’s ability to 

begin construction within one year after purchase. (5-7 points) 

 

▪ Unacceptable: Proposal includes a timeline without sufficient detail or the proposal 

does not include any timeline. (0-2 points) 

 

e. Purchase price 

 

▪ Highly Advantageous: Project Team or Individual has offered a responsible purchase 

price as part of the RFP. (8-10 points) 

 

▪ Less Advantageous: Project Team or individual has offered less than reasonable 

purchase price as part of the RFP. (3-6 points) 

 

9. Evaluation Process 

 
The Project Development Contract will be awarded to the most advantageous proposer, as determined by 
the Town at its sole discretion. The evaluation process will be made in three phases:  
 



 10 

 

(1)   An initial review of each proposal will made to determine whether all Minimum Requirements 
(Section 7 of this RFP) have been met.  Any proposal not meeting those requirements will be eliminated 
from consideration.   
 
(2)  Proposals that satisfy the Minimum Requirements will be further evaluated in accordance with the 
Comparative Evaluation Criteria set forth in Section 8 of this RFP by the evaluators appointed by the 
Town.   
 
(3)  The evaluations will be reviewed in conjunction with the financial proposals, the results of any 
interviews and any additional information requested by the Town, on which basis the most advantageous 
proposer will be identified. 
 
During the evaluation process, the Town reserves the right for any reason deemed appropriate by the Town 
to waive portions of the RFP; to waive any minor informality in a proposal; to request “best and final” 
offers; to reject any and all Proposals; to terminate this RFP; and/or to issue a new RFP. 
 
The Town reserves the right to reject any and all proposals if it determines that the criteria set forth have 
not been met or for any other reason in its sole discretion. 
 
Within sixty (60) days of being selected, the Designated Developer shall provide to the Town: 
 

• Development Agreement(s) as negotiated with and to the satisfaction of the Town, executed by 

the Developer.  

•    A deposit equal to 10% of the Purchase Price. 

• A signed Disclosure Statement of Beneficial Interest in accordance with M.G.L. c.7, §40J.   

• Any other documents as required by the Town.  

 

If the required documents are not executed and submitted to the Town within the specified time, the 

Designated Developer’s selection will automatically expire, unless extended in writing by the Town at its 

sole discretion. 

 
The Town reserves the right to negotiate with another proposer if the Designated Developer and the 
Town are unable to negotiate a final Development Agreement satisfactory to the Town in its sole 
discretion. 
 

10. Rule for Award of Contract 

 

The RFP contract will be awarded to the most advantageous proposal from a responsive and responsible 

proposer, taking into consideration price and all other evaluation criteria set forth in the RFP.  Before 

awarding the RFP, the Town may request additional information from prospective developers or 

individual, and/or may require interviews.  

 

11. Non-Applicability of Public Construction Laws 

 

It is the Town’s intent that any agreement resulting from this RFP shall be for a private development to 

which none of the laws and regulations applicable to public construction projects shall apply. The Town 

has established certain Proposal Minimum Requirements (See Section 7 herein), but otherwise the 

successful developer shall be responsible for the design and construction of its Project. The Town shall 

have the right to inspect the Project during construction for the purpose of assuring that construction is 

following the developer’s Proposal and not to modify the design or the manner of construction except to 

the extent any municipality might exercise its health, safety, and zoning powers for any private 

construction project. 

 



 11 

 

12. Disclaimer/Reservation of Rights 

 

The Town makes no representations or warranties, expressed or implied, as to the accuracy and/or 

completeness of the information provided in this RFP.  The Project Site will be disposed of to the 

Selected Developer in “AS-IS”, “WHERE IS” and with “ALL DEFECTS” without any representation, 

warranty or covenant of any kind whatsoever, and the successful developer shall agree to accept the 

Project Site in such condition without recourse to the Town of any kind or for any reason whatsoever. 

 

The Town reserves the right to extend the deadline for submission of Proposals, to request supplementary 

information, to conduct interviews with any or all of the developers submitting proposals, to waive minor 

informalities, and to reject any or all proposals, in whole or in part, if in its sole judgment the best interests 

of the Town would be served in doing so.  The Town will reject any and all proposals when required to 

do so by applicable law. 

 

The Town reserves the right to negotiate any and all terms of a Development Agreement (Purchase and 

Sale Agreement or other agreement with the Designated Developer).  If such negotiations cannot be 

concluded successfully with the Designated Developer, the Town may choose to negotiate an 

agreement with the next Designated Developer from the pool of proposers, to terminate this RFP 

process, or to begin a new RFP process. 

 

Execution of a Development Agreement with the Town for the Project Site in no way constitutes 

satisfaction of any applicable Town bylaws nor guarantees issuance of any required Town permit, 

including a special permit/site plan approval or liquor license. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 12 

 

 
ATTACHMENT A 

 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 13 

 

 
ATTACHMENT B 

 

PROPERTY PHOTOS 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 14 

 

 
 

ATTACHMENT C 
 

FORM FOR PRICE PROPOSAL 

 
 

The undersigned having fully examined, read, and in understanding of the request for proposal 

(RFP) for this contract and being familiar with all of the conditions surrounding the project and 

sale of the 193 Main Street Fire Station offers the following sale price as described below: 

 

Price offered =     $_____________________________________________________ 

 

Price offered in words = ________________________________________________ 

 

 

The Undersigned agrees that, if he/she is selected as the highest ranking proposer, they will within sixty 

(60) days, Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays excluded, after, execute a Contract in accordance with 

the terms of this RFP. 

 

The undersigned further certifies under the penalties of perjury that this proposal is in all respects bona 

fide, fair and made without collusion or fraud with any other person. As used in this subsection the word 

"person" shall mean natural person, joint venture, partnership, corporation or other business or legal 

entity. 

 

The Undersigned further certifies under penalty of perjury that the said undersigned is not presently 

debarred from doing business in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts under the provisions of section 

twenty-nine F of Chapter twenty nine, or any other applicable debarment provisions of any other chapter 

of the General Laws or any rule or regulation promulgated thereunder. 

 

The undersigned further agrees that he or she is able to furnish labor that can work in harmony with all 

other elements of labor employed or to be employed in the work. 

 

The undersigned furthermore agrees that by submitting this proposal it fully understands the proposal 

specifications, terms and conditions as outlined in this document. 

 

Company Information: 

 

Name   ___________________________________ 

 

Address  ___________________________________ 

 

___________________________________ 

 

Phone   ___________________________________ 

 

E-Mail   ___________________________________ 

 

FID #   ___________________________________ 

 

 



 15 

 

 

 

Signature for Individual 

 

________________________________  

Name of Company  

 

_______________________________________ 

Name and Title of Individual Authorized to Sign  

 

________________________________  

Signature  

 

Date__________________________ 

 

 

Signature for Partnerships (must be signed by ALL general partners) 

 

________________________________    __________________________ 

Name of Partnership         Date 

 

________________________________    __________________________ 

Name and Title of Partner       Signature 

 

________________________________    __________________________ 

Name and Title of Partner       Signature 

 

________________________________    __________________________ 

Name and Title of Partner       Signature 

 

 

Signatures for Corporation 

 

____________________________________________________________ 

Name of Corporation         Date 

 

____________________________________________________________ 

Printed Name and Title of Duly Authorized Company Officer 

 

________________________________ 

Signature                  Corporate Seal (affix below) 

 

________________________________ 

FID Number 

 

________________________________ 

Signature of Clerk               
 

 



 16 

 

 
 

ATTACHMENT D 
 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-COLLUSION 

 
The undersigned certifies under penalties of perjury that this bid or proposal has been made and 

submitted in good faith and without collusion or fraud with any other person.  As used in this 

certification, the word “person” shall mean any natural person, business, partnership, corporation union, 

committee, club or other organization, entity, or group of individuals. 

 

The designer, interior designer or construction manager has not given, offered or agreed to give any 

person, corporation or other entity any gift, contribution or offer of employment as an inducement for, or 

in connection with, the award of the contract for design services; no consultant to or subcontractor for 

the designer, interior designer or construction manager has given, offered or agreed to give a gift, 

contribution or offer of employment to the designer, interior designer or construction manager, or to any 

other person, corporation or entity as an inducement for, or in connection with, the award to the 

consultant or subcontractor of a contract by the designer, interior designer or construction manager; no 

person, corporation or other entity, other than a bona fide full-time employee of the designer, interior 

designer or construction manager, has been retained or hired by the designer, interior designer or 

construction manager to solicit for or in any way assist the designer, interior designer or construction 

manager in obtaining the contract for design services upon an agreement or understanding that such 

person, corporation or other entity be paid a fee or other consideration contingent upon the award of the 

contract to the designer or interior designer; and the designer or interior designer has internal accounting 

controls as required by M.G.L. Chapter 30, Section 39R 9 ( c ), and the designer or interior designer has 

filed and will continue to file an audited financial statement as required by M.G.L. Chapter 30, Section 

39R 9 ( c ). 

 

 

Executed this ___________day of __________________, 2023 

 

 

Respectively submitted by: 

 

 

_______________________________ _______________ 

             (Authorized Signature)  (Date) 

 

 

_______________________________ 

                            (Title) 

 

 

Company Name: ___________________________________ 

 

Address: __________________________________________ 

 

    __________________________________________ 

 

Seal (If by Corporation): 

 



 17 

 

 
ATTACHMENT E 

 

STATEMENT OF TAX COMPLIANCE 
 
 
Pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 62C, Section 49A, I certify under the penalties 

 

 

of perjury that ______________________________ has fully complied with all laws of the 

                                         Name of Entity 

 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts relating to the payment of taxes. 

 

 

Company Name: ___________________________________ 

 

Address: __________________________________________ 

 

    __________________________________________ 

 

 

Social Security or  

Federal Identification Number: _____________________________ 

 

 

_______________________________ _______________ 

             (Authorized Signature)  (Date) 

 

 

_______________________________ 

                            (Title) 

 

 

 

Seal (If by Corporation): 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 18 

 

 
ATTACHMENT F 

 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY 

(Corporations Only) 
 
At a duly authorized meeting of the Board of Directors of ________________________ 

                                                                                                  Name of Corporation    

           

it was VOTED that _____________________________________ of this company is authorized to 

                                                         Name and Title 

 

execute contracts and bonds in the name of and on behalf of this company, and affix its corporate seal 

 

hereto; and such execution of any contract obligation in this company’s name and on its behalf, said  

 

obligation to be valid and binding upon this company. 

 

 

A True Copy Attested, 

 

 

Company Name: ___________________________________ 

 

Address: __________________________________________ 

 

    __________________________________________ 

 

 

_______________________________ _______________ 

             (Authorized Signature)  (Date) 

 

 

_______________________________ 

                            (Title) 

 

 

I hereby certify that I am the clerk of ______________________________; that the  

                                                                          Name of Corporation 

 

above vote has not been amended or rescinded and remains in full force and effect as of the date of this  

 

contract. 

 

 
Name of Clerk: _____________________________ Corporate Seal: 
 
 

 
 

 



 19 

 

 
ATTACHMENT G 

 

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT FOR TRANSACTION  

WITH A PUBLIC AGENCY CONCERNING REAL PROPERTY 
M.G.L. c. 7C, s. 38 (formerly M.G.L. c. 7, s. 40J) 

 
 

The undersigned party to a real property transaction with a public agency hereby discloses and certifies, 

under pains and penalties of perjury, the following information as required by law: 

 

(1) REAL PROPERTY: 

 

 

(2) TYPE OF TRANSACTION, AGEEMENT, or DOCUMENT: 

 

 

(3) PUBLIC AGENCY PARTICIPATING in TRANSACTION: 

 

 

(4) DISCLOSING PARTY’S NAME AND TYPE OF ENTITY: 

 

 

(5) ROLE OF DISCLOSING PARTY (Check appropriate role): 

 

_____Lessor/Landlord   _____Lessee/Tenant 

 

_____Seller/Grantor    _____Buyer/Grantee 

 

_____Other (Please describe): _______________________________________ 

 

(6) The names and addresses of all persons and individuals who have or will have a direct or indirect 

beneficial interest in the real property excluding only 1) a stockholder of a corporation the stock of 

which is listed for sale to the general public with the securities and exchange commission, if such 

stockholder holds less than ten per cent of the outstanding stock entitled to vote at the annual meeting of 

such corporation or 2) an owner of a time share that has an interest in a leasehold condominium meeting 

all of the conditions specified in M.G.L. c. 7C, s. 38, are hereby disclosed as follows (attach additional 

pages if necessary): 

 
NAME          RESIDENCE 

 

__________________________   _______________________________________ 
 

__________________________   _______________________________________ 

 
 

(7) None of the above- named persons is an employee of the Division of Capital Asset Management and 

Maintenance or an official elected to public office in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, except as 

listed below (Check “NONE” if NONE): 

 

NONE:    



 20 

 

 

NAME          POSITION 

 

__________________________   _______________________________________ 
 

__________________________   _______________________________________ 

 

(8) The individual signing this statement on behalf of the above-named party acknowledges that he/she 

has read the following provisions of Chapter 7C, Section 38 (formerly Chapter 7, Section 40J) of the 

General Laws of Massachusetts: 
 

No agreement to rent or to sell real property to or to rent or purchase real property from a public 

agency, and no renewal or extension of such agreement, shall be valid and no payment shall be made to 

the lessor or seller of such property unless a statement, signed, under the penalties of perjury, has been 

filed by the lessor, lessee, seller or purchaser, and in the case of a corporation by a duly authorized 

officer thereof giving the true names and addresses of all persons who have or will have a direct or 

indirect beneficial interest in said property with the commissioner of capital asset management and 

maintenance. The provisions of this section shall not apply to any stockholder of a corporation the stock 

of which is listed for sale to the general public with the securities and exchange commission, if such 

stockholder holds less than ten per cent of the outstanding stock entitled to vote at the annual meeting of 

such corporation. In the case of an agreement to rent property from a public agency where the lessee’s 

interest is held by the organization of unit owners of a leasehold condominium created under chapter 

one hundred and eighty-three A, and time-shares are created in the leasehold condominium under 

chapter one hundred and eighty-three B, the provisions of this section shall not apply to an owner of a 

time-share in the leasehold condominium who (i) acquires the time-share on or after a bona fide arms 

length transfer of such time-share made after the rental agreement with the public agency is executed 

and (ii) who holds less than three percent of the votes entitled to vote at the annual meeting of such 

organization of unit owners. A disclosure statement shall also be made in writing, under penalty of 

perjury, during the term of a rental agreement in case of any change of interest in such property, as 

provided for above, within thirty days of such change. 
 

Any official elected to public office in the commonwealth, or any employee of the division of capital 

asset management and maintenance disclosing beneficial interest in real property pursuant to this 

section, shall identify his position as part of the disclosure statement. The commissioner shall notify the 

state ethics commission of such names, and shall make copies of any and all disclosure statements 

received available to the state ethics commission upon request. 

 

The commissioner shall keep a copy of each disclosure statement received available for public 

inspection during regular business hours. 
 
 

(9) This Disclosure Statement is hereby signed under penalties of perjury. 
 
 

______________________________________________________ 

PRINT NAME OF DISCLOSING PARTY (from Section 4, above) 

 

  __________________________________________________________________________ 

    AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE of DISCLOSING PARTY  DATE (MM / DD / YYYY) 

 

____________________________________________ 

PRINT NAME & TITLE of AUTHORIZED SIGNER 



 21 

 

 
 

ATTACHMENT H 
 

CHECKLIST 
 
 
 
 
Attachment A – Property Information    ___________ 

 

Attachment B – Property Photos    ___________ 

 

Attachment C – Price Proposal    ___________ 

 

Attachment D – Non-Collusion Statement (signed)     ___________ 

 

Attachment E – Tax Compliance Statement (signed)    ___________ 

 

Attachment F – Certificate of Authority (if applicable)   ___________ 

 

Attachment G – Disclosure Statement    ___________ 

 

Attachment H – Checklist     ___________ 

 

Addenda Acknowledgement (if applicable)    ___________ 
 




